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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 24™ Annual General Meeting of the Members of Asian Lakto
Industries Limited will be held on Sunday the 30™ day of September, 2018 at registered office of the
Company situated at 11:00 A.M. at VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141001, Punjab to transact

the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

ITEM NO.1: TO RECEIVE & ADOPT AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
OTHER REPORTS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, Statement of Profit and

Loss for the year ended on that date, together with Report of the Auditor’s and Director’s thereon.

ITEM NO.2: RE-APPOINTMENT OF SMT. MANDIRA PODDAR

To re-appoint Director Smt. Mandira Poddar (Holding DIN: 02114374), who retires by rotation in terms
of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer herself for re-appointment in place

of Sh. Harinder Kumar Sachdeva.

ITEM NO. 3: RATIFICATION FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS OF
THE COMPANY

To consider and ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditors of the company for the Financial Year 2018-
19 and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 the
appointment of the M/s R.K Deepak & Co., Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana as the Statutory Auditors



of the Company for a term of consecutive five years starting from Conclusion of 23" Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of 28"™ Annual General Meeting of the company be and is hereby ratified at the
24™ Annual General Meeting of the Company at such remuneration as may be finalized by the Director in
consultation with auditor plus applicable service tax and reimbursement of travelling and out of pocket

expenses incurred by them for the purpose of audit.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

ITEM NO: 4. BLANKET APPROVAL FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 and in terms of applicable provisions of Listing Agreement executed with the Stock
Exchanges (including any amendment, modification or re-enactment thereof), and also pursuant to the
consent of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors vide resolutions passed in their respective
meetings, the approval of the Company be and is hereby for entering into the following proposed Related
Party Transactions at Arm Length Price with respect to sale and purchase of goods and raw material by
and from Asian Lakto Industries Limited for the financial year 2018-19 upto the maximum per annum

amounts as appended in table below:

Sr. Name of the | Relationship Maximum Value of Transaction
No Related Party per Annum
1 Nandan Traders | Directors having Significant Interest 5 Crores
2 Asianlak Health | Directors having Significant Interest 5 Crores
Foods Ltd
3 Sri Varadharaja | Directors having Significant Interest 10 Crores
Fruit Products
(P)Ltd

ITEM NO. - 5 TO INCREASE REMUNERATION OF MR. GOPAL PODDAR, MANAGING
DIRECTOR FROM RS. 230,000 PER MONTH TO RS. 3.00,000 W.E.F 01°" OF APRIL 2018.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special

Resolution:



Chairman informed the board that the company is likely to enhanced remuneration of Mr. Gopal Poddar,
Managing Director from Rs. 2,30,000/- PM to Rs. 3,00,000/- PM with effect from 01 April, 2018, plus
all perquisites within the limits as ascertained under the provisions of Schedule V of the Act and board

discussed the matter and passed the following resolution;

RESOLVED THAT Pursuant To Provisions of Section 196, 197 and 203 and all other applicable
provisions if any, of the Companies Act , 2013, (“the Act”) read with schedule V to the said act and the
companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for time being in force) and as per the Articles of Association
of the Company and such other approval(s) or sanction(s) as may be prescribed, consent of company be
and is hereby accord to increase in the remuneration of Sh. Gopal Poddar, Managing Director of the
company from Rs. 2,30,000 (Rupees Two Lakh Thirty Thousand Only) per month to Rs. 3,00,000
(Rupees Three Lakhs Only) plus all perquisites or such other limit as may be ascertained under the

provision of Schedule V of the Act, payable as per rules and policies of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sh. Gopal Poddar shall also be eligible to the following benefits which

shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration:

Sr No | Remuneration Details

I Basic Salary Rs. 3,00,000/- Per Month

I Perquisites Perquisites will be allowed in addition to salary, as mentioned
below:

a) Medical Reimbursement Reimbursement of actual Medical expenses incurred in India

and/or abroad and including hospitalization, nursing home and
surgical charges and will also pay health insurance premium for
himself and his family subject to the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b) Leave Travel Concession | Reimbursement of actual travelling expenses for proceeding on
leave once in a year in respect of himself and his family in
accordance with the rules of the Company.

c) Club Fees Reimbursement of membership fee of any club in India and/or
abroad including admission and life membership fee subject a
maximum of two (2) clubs.

d) Personal Accident Premium not to exceed Rs. 15,000/- Per Annum.
e) Car & Telephone Free Use of Company’s car for official work as well as for
personal purposes and telephone at company’s cost.
f) Gratuity Company will pay gratuity at the rate of half month's salary for
each completed year of service.
2) Contribution to Provident | Company will contribute to provident fund, superannuation fund
Fund and Annuity fund as per company’s policy but subject to Income

Tax Act, 1961.

*Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income-Tax Rules, wherever applicable and in absence of any such
rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the company be and are hereby authorized to
approve the remuneration and do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary and incidental to give
effect this resolution.

By Order of the Board

For Asian Lakto Industries Limited
Place: Ludhiana
Date: 05.09.2018

Sd/-

(Gopal Poddar)

Managing Director

(DIN: - 01859022)

Add: 509-B, Aggar Nagar,

Ludhiana 141001, PB (IN).



Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on a poll instead of himself/ herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy,
in order to be effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. The

Blank Proxy form is enclosed.

2. In Compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules 2015, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listed
Obligations And Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company has provided a facility to
the members to exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting service facility arranged
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited. The facility for voting through ballot paper, will also be
made available at the AGM and the members attending the AGM who have not already cast their votes
by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes

again.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and

vote in their behalf at the Meeting.

4. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or

shareholder.

5. A statement giving the relevant details of the Directors seeking re-appointment under Item No. 2, 5

of the accompanying Notice is annexed herewith in explanatory statement.

6. Members are requested to intimate their queries, if any, related to accounts at least seven days in

advance of meeting so that information can be made available and furnished at meeting.

7. All documents referred to in the notice, unless otherwise specifically stated will be available for
members for inspection at the registered office of the Company between 10.30 am to 12.30 pm from the
date hereof upto the date of Annual General Meeting.

8. The register of members and share transfer books shall remain closed from Thursday the 20™

September, 2018 to Sunday 30™ September, 2018 (Both Days inclusive).

9. Mr. Ashwani Khanna proprietor of Khanna Ashwani & Associates has been appointed as scrutinizer

Jor providing the report on results of poll/vote for the resolution passed during the AGM.



10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities Market. Members holding shares in physical
form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to the Company Skyline Financial Services Private

Limited.

11. The Result of the resolutions passed at the AGM of the Company will be declared within 48 working
hours of Conclusion of AGM. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer Report shall be placed on

Company’s website and on the website of CDSL and will be communicated to the stock exchanges.

12. M/s Khanna Ashwani & Associates, Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner (including the ballot forms received from
members who do not have access to the e-voting process). The scrutinizer shall within a period of three
working days from the conclusion of e-voting period, unblock the votes in presence of at least two
witnesses not in employment of the company and make a report of the votes cast in favour or against, if

any, forthwith to the chairman of the company.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i)  The voting period begins on 27" Sep, 2018 (9:00 am) and ends on 29" Sep, 2018 (5:00 pm).
During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of may cast their vote electronically. The

e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the

meeting venue.
(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
(iv) Click on “Shareholders” tab.
(v)  Now Enter your User ID

For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company.

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.



(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted

on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two
letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the
PAN field.

¢ In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable
number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is 3 Ramesh Kumar with
sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field

Dividend Bank Details | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format)

OR Date of Birth | as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to

(DOB) login.

o If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank

details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field.
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other

person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the

resolutions contained in this Notice.



(xii) Click on the EVSN 180904106. <ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED> for the relevant on

which you choose to vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that

you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote,

click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM?” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xvii) You can also take a print of the vote cast
by clicking on “Click here to print”’
option on the Voting page.

(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten
the login password then Enter the User
ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted

by the system.

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android
based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google play store. Apple and windows
phone user can download the app from the App store and windows Phone store respectively on or
after 30™ June, 2016. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobiles app while voting

on your mobile.

(xx) Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians
. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodiane® are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

o A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be

emailed to helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com.



(xxi)

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote

on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com and
on

approval of the accounts they would be

able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they havee issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the

scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section

or write an email to helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com.



ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: - VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara,
Ludhiana-141001, Punjab.

CIN: - L15209PB1994P1.C014386
Email Id: accounts@asianlak.com
Telephone No: 0161-2424602

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

ITEM NO. 2 OF THE ORDINARY BUSINESS

INFORMATION AND DETAILS REGARDING DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT IN
THE ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Name of the Director MANDIRA PODDAR

Director Identification Number (DIN) 02114374

Date of Birth 20/05/1966

Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment on Board 27/03/2015

Qualification B.A.

No. of Shares Held 3,27,200

List of Directorships held in other Companies (excluding NIL

foreign, private and Section 8 Companies)

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit and NIL

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees across Public

Companies

Relationship with other Directors Gopal Poddar (Wife), Abhishek
Poddar (Mother), Neeraj Poddar
(Sister-in-law), Radhe Shyam Poddar
(Daughter-in-law)

None of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the company/their relatives are
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 2.

ITEM NO. 5 OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

The members may note that based on the recommendations of the board of directors of the company at
their meeting held on 31.03.2018, approve the Revision/Increase of remuneration of Mr. Gopal Poddar,
Managing Director of the company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 to Rs. 3, 00,000
(Rupees Three Lakhs Only) per month each w.e.f 01* April, 2018 plus all perquisites.

Statement Required pursuant to provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is given below,

I. GENERAL INFORMATION:



1. Nature of Industry:

The company carries the business of manufacturing, distribution, Wholesale of fruit juices & aerated
beverages all around India from its plant situated in VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana

2. Date and Expected date of commencement of Commercial Production:
The Commercial Production of the company’s product is started in the year of 1994.

3. In Case of New Companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institution appearing in the prospectus:

Not Applicable.
4. Financial Performance Based on the given indicators:
Company earned the total revenue before tax during the financial year 2017-18 of Rs. 14,754,305.34 as
compared to Rs. 20,852,466.26 during the financial year 2016-17. However due to increase in the expenses
of Human Capital and adjustments of carrying cost related to fixed assets, the company’s gross profit

margin is slightly squeezed in financial year 2017-18 as compared to profit of 2016-17 but still company is
able to maintain the profits.

5. Foreign Investment and Collaboration:
Not Applicable
II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE MR. GOPAL PODDAR:

1. Background Details:
Mr. Gopal Poddar; is the Managing Director of the company. During this Period he has served the
company with best of his capabilities. He is the person of immense enthusiasm and dynamism possessing
sharp ability for business decision making. He carries with himself a vast business experience. His
association with the Company supported by strong determination, vast knowledge and experience in the
field of Operations is expected to be highly beneficial for identifying potential growth plans and projects
for business expansion.

2. Past Remuneration:

Past Remuneration is Rs. 230,000/- Per Month plus other Incentive and Perquisites as per the company
policies.

3. Recognition or Awards:

Not applicable



4. Job Profile and Suitability of the Appointee:

Mr. Gopal Poddar has been in managerial position since last couple of years and has been contributing in
his role towards achievement of the common objectives of the organization. Hence, on the basis of the
recommendation of the Board along with Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Mr. Gopal Poddar is a
suitable candidate for his re-appointment as Managing Director of the Company.

5. Remuneration Proposed:

The appointee will be paid remuneration not exceeding Rs 3,00,000/- (Rupees Three Lakhs Only) p.m.,
such other limit as may be ascertained under the provisions of Schedule V of the Act , Plus other
Perquisites & Incentives as per company policies, payable as per rules and policies of the company, for the
remaining term of Five years tenure w.e.f 01.04.2018.

6. Comparative Remuneration profile with respect to the Industry, size of the company, profile of
the position of the company.

Taking into account the size of the company, industry benchmark in general, profile, position,
responsibilities, capabilities and the involvement of Mr. Gopal Poddar in the company and the proposed
Remuneration is reasonable and in line with the Remuneration levels in the industry, across the industry

and befits his position.

7. Pecuniary relationship directly with the company or relationship with the managerial personnel
if ,any:

Except for the proposed Remuneration Mr. Gopal Poddar does not have any pecuniary relationship with
the company or with any managerial personnel.

1V Other Information

1. Reason Of Loss Or Inadequate Profits:
There is lot of new competition in the market, though the size of market is increasing but due to severe
competition and the global economic slowdown leads the current financial results into inadequate profits
for payment of managerial remuneration within the capped limits.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement :

The company has taken stringent cost actions and continues to curtail both employee and non employee
costs. Also, the management continues to explore avenues to increase the revenue.

3. Expected increase in Productivity and Profits :
The company is committed to build the business operations within budget and considering that the

business operates on a going concern basis, it is believed that financial position of the company will
improve in near future.



Place:

Date:

Ludhiana
05.09.2018

By Order of the Board
For Asian Lakto Industries Limited

Sd/-

(Gopal Poddar)

Managing Director

(DIN: - 01859022)

Add: 509-B, Aggar Nagar,
Ludhiana 141001, PB (IN).



ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: - VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara,
Ludhiana-141112, Punjab.

CIN: - L15209PB1994P1.C014386
Email Id: accounts @asianlak.com
Telephone No: 0161-2424602

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting their 24™Annual Report on the affairs of the
Company together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2018 is summarized below:

(Amt. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17
Revenue from operations(Gross) 6608.37 8352.63
Profit before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) 372.77 422.28
Less: Interest & Financial Expenses 178.02 167.63
Profit Before Depreciation & Tax (PBDT) 194.76 254.64
Less: Depreciation 47.11 46.12
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 147.64 208.52
Less: Current Tax 44.29 62.56
Deferred Tax - -

Earlier Year Tax Adjustments - -

Profit For The Period and After Tax (PAT) 103.35 145.96
Earnings Per Share (Rs.)
-Basic 0.02 0.02
-Diluted 0.02 0.02
Balance Available for Appropriation 103.35 145.96

Less: Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares -- -

Tax on Proposed Dividend - -




Transfer to General Reserve -- --

Balance Brought Forward 398.91 252.94

Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 502.26 398.91

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. For all periods
upto and including the year ending 31 March 2017, the company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms
of Rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard, if initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use. Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting
standards on an ongoing basis.

2. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

A. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS:

PRODUCTION & SALES REVIEW:

During the year, the Revenue from operations was Rs. 65,97,38,348/-as against Rs. 83,43,96,121/- in the
previous year. The Company earned other income of Rs. 1098788/-during the year as against
Rs. 8,66,871/- in the previous year.

PROFITABILITY:

The Company earned profit before depreciation, interest and tax of Rs.37277136.78 as against
Rs. 4,22,28,003.80 in the previous year. After providing for depreciation of Rs. 47,11,837.00 (Previous
Year Rs. 46,12,196.98), the profit after tax was Rs. 1,03,34,940.94 as against Rs 14596726.38 last year.

B. RESOURCE UTILISATION:

FIXED ASSETS:

The net fixed assets as at 31" March, 2018 were Rs. 5,22,31,767.43 as against previous year’s fixed assets
of Rs. 5,65,27,453.04. During the year, there was reduction in fixed assets of Rs. 4295685.61.

CURRENT ASSETS:

The net current assets as on 31* March, 2018 were Rs. 27,51,24,433.28 as against Rs. 29,52,03,917.17 in
the previous year.

C. FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND LIQUIDITY:

Management believes that the Company’s liquidity and capital resources are sufficient to meet its expected
working capital needs and other anticipated cash requirements. The position of liquidity and capital
resources of the Company is given below: -



CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

The cash flow statement depicting the opening cash, closing cash balances and receipt of cash and
spending thereof from operating activities is annexed to the balance sheet and stated as follows:

(Amt in Rs.)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Beginning of the Year 2,059,321.82 34,60,507.24
End of the Year 2,127,622.39 2,059,321.82
Net Cash provided/(used) by:

- Operating Activities 24432929.41 19212441.86

- Investing Activities (416151.40) (6235971.00)

- Financing Activities (23948477.44) (14377656.28)

3. DIVIDEND

To keep and conserve the profits and reserves for future expansion of the company the Board of Directors
of the company has not recommended any dividend for the year 2017-2018.

4. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT-9 as a part of this
Annual Report as ANNEXURE ‘A’.

S.NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy
apart from other Board business. The notice of Board meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors.
Usually, meetings of the Board are held in Ludhiana to discuss the complex business strategies. The
Agenda of the Board / Committee meetings is normally circulated at least a week prior to the date of the
meeting but in certain cases is being held at a shorter notice. The Agenda for the Board and Committee
meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take
an informed decision.

The Board met 11 (Eleven) times in financial year 2017-18 viz., on

Sr. No. | DATE OF BOARD | DIRECTOR IN VENUE OF BOARD MEETING
MEETING ATTENDANCE
1. 20.05.2017 6 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.
2. 20.06.2017 4 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.




3. 26.06.2017 6 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.

4. 10.08.2017 5 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.

5. 23.08.2017 5 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.

6. 04.09.2017 5 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.

7. 21.10.2017 5 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.

8. 09.11.2017 5 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.

9. 08.02.2018 4 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.

10. 09.02.2018 5 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.

11. 09.03.2018 5 VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112,
Punjab.

The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

5. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) I of the Companies Act,
2013:

a). that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 2017, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

b). that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that
period;

¢). that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the Assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d). that Directors’ have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e). the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

f). the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.



6. COMMENTS ONAUDITORS REPORT

(i) There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by statutory auditors
during this financial year.

(i1) There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made in secretarial audit report
given by a company secretary in practice during this financial year.

7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013:

- The company has not granted any loan to any person during the year under review. During the
previous year company has given corporate guarantee in respect of Asianlak health Foods Ltd and
Sri Vardharaja Fruits Products Pvt Ltd by passing special resolution through postal ballots
pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES:

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The details of material
contracts/ arrangements/ transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended 31* March, 2018 is annexed
hereto in Form AOC-2 and forms part of this report as ANNEXURE‘B’.

9. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

NIL amount is transferred to the General Reserve.

10.TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION
FUND

In accordance with the provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 company has not having
any unpaid dividend or excess share application amount in the book of accounts. As company has not
declared any dividend in the previous year, hence no amount is transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

11._ MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between
the ends of the financial year to which these financial statements relate on the date of this report.

12. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:




Energy conservation continues to be an area of major emphasis in our Company. Efforts are made to
optimize the energy cost while carrying out the manufacturing operations. Particulars with respect to
conservation of energy and other areas as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are annexed hereto and form part of this report as ANNEXURE ‘C’
and is attached to this report.

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the
said provisions as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

14. BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 red with Rule 8(4)of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its
own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit,
Nomination & Remuneration and Compliance Committees. The performance evaluations of all the
independent Directors have been done by the entire board excluding the director being evaluated. On the
basis of the performance evaluation done by the board it shall be determined whether to extend or continue
their term of appointment, whenever their respective term expires.

15. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

16. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Amt. in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14
Revenue from 6597.38 8343.96 7672.54 7488.60 7138.62
operations(Gross)
TOTAL INCOME 6608.37 8352.62 7675.33 7493.26 7143.19
Earnings before 372.77 422.27 374.59 359.34 329.25
Depreciation,
Finance Cost & Tax
expenses (EBDIT)
Less: Depreciation 47.11 46.12 26.01 17.71 72.62
& Amortization
Finance Cost 178.02 167.63 156.43 155.24 133.49
PROFIT FOR THE 147.64 208.52 192.15 152.83 100.97
YEAR




Equity Dividend %

Dividend payout

Equity Share
Capital

580.33

580.33

580.33

580.33

580.33

Equity Share
Suspense Account

Equity Share
warrants

Reserves & Surplus

502.26

398.91

252.94

118.43

114.33

Net Worth

1082.59

979.24

833.27

698.76

694.66

Borrowings (Long
term & Short term)

2009.14

2360.93

1769.29

1693.14

1807.28

Gross Fixed Assets

1885.36

1881.08

1818.72

1502.97

1502.97

Less: Depreciation

1363.05

1315.80

1269.68

1243.67

1077.23

Net Fixed Assets

522.31

565.28

549.03

259.30

425.74

Investments -- - - — -

Face Value Per 10 10 10 10 10
Share

Basic -- -- -- -- --
EPS

Diluted - - - - -

17. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted and does not intend to accept any deposits from the public. As at 31"
March, 2018 there are no outstanding/unclaimed deposits from the public.

18. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

19. NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF
THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has Zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any one which may fall under the
ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of
every women working with the Company. The Policy framed by the Company in this regard provides for



protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and redressal of such
complaints.

20. PARTICULARS NO. OF COMPLAINTS TO PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSEMENT 1

Number of Complaints pending as on beginning of the financial year NIL
Number of Complaints filed during the financial year NIL
Number of Complaints pending as on the end of the financial year NIL

21. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has well defined internal control system. The Company takes abundant care to design,
review and monitor the working of internal control system. Internal audit in the organization is an
independent appraisal activity and all significant issues are brought to the attention of the Audit Committee
of the Board.

22, INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or
operation were observed.

23. A). DIRECTORS

i). APPOINTMENTS

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
No Independent Directors have been appointed during the year.

DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 149(6):

All the Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be
appointed as Independent Directors.

ii). RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Smt. Mandira Poddar (Holding
DIN: 02114374), Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible offer himself for
re-appointment.

iii). RESIGNATION

Mr. Abhishek Poddar has resigned from the position of Whole Time Director of the company on
12.08.2017 and resignation was being confirmed by the board of director in the meeting of board of
directors held on 23.08.2017.

B). KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 the below mentioned KMP have
been appointed in the Company:



WHOLE TIME KEY MANAGERIAL DESIGNATION DATE OF

PERSONNEL OF THE COMPNY APPOINTMENT

Ms. Prerna Company Secretary(CS) 01.05.2017

Abhishek Poddar Chief Financial 01.03.2018
Officer(CFO)

Mr. Ravinder Singh Katoch has resigned from the post of Chief financial Officer w.e.f 10.10.2017 and
resignation has been accepted by the board on 09.11.2017.

Mr. Abhishek Poddar being appointed as the Chief Financial officer of the company w.e.f 01.03.2018 in
the board meeting held on 09.02.2018.

24. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT

A). STATUTORY AUDITORS

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
other applicable provisions, if any, M/s R.K Deepak & Co., Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana be and are
hereby appointed as the statutory auditors of the company for the period of 5 years subject to the
ratification by the members at every Annual General Meeting, commencing from the conclusion of this
23" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 28" AGM at such remuneration as may be determined
by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

B). SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

M/s Khanna Ashwani & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, were appointed as Secretarial
Auditor of the Company by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 21.05.2018 for the financial
year 2017-18.

The Secretarial Auditors of the Company have submitted their Report in Form No. MR-3 as required under
Section 204, of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year ended 31° March, 2018. The Report forms
part of this report as Annexure ‘D’.

C). INTERNAL AUDITOR:

Sh. Naresh Kumar Baweja was appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company pursuant to provisions of
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 21.05.2018 to
conduct internal audit of the functions and activities of the Company and maintain internal control systems
of the Company.

25. BOARD COMMITTEES

A. AUDIT& RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Management committee of the Board of Directors comprises of two Independent
directors i.e. Sh. Rajesh Kumar Sharma, Sh. Shatrohan Lal and one executive director i.e. Sh. Gopal
Poddar. Sh. Rajesh Kumar Sharma is the Chairperson of the said committee. CS Prerna is Secretary of the
Committee. The Committee met Four times, during the year under review.

B.STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE




The Stakeholder Relationship and Risk Management Committee consist of three directors i.e. Sh. Rajesh
Kumar Sharma, Sh. Shatrohan Lal and Sh. Gopal Poddar. Sh. Rajesh Kumar Sharma is the
Chairperson of the said committee.

The Committee met once, during the year under review. The Committee has formulated Risk Management
policy which was subsequently approved by board of Directors.

C.NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee consists of three non-executive directors i.e. Sh. Rajesh
Kumar Sharma, Sh. Shatrohan Lal and Sh. Harinder Kumar Sachdeva. Sh. Shatrohan Lal is the
Chairperson of the said committee. The Committee met once, during the year under review. The
Committee has formulated policy relating to appointment of Directors, Payment of Managerial
remuneration, Director’s qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related
matters as provided under Section 178(3) & (4)of Companies Act, 2013 which was subsequently approved
by board of Directors.

26. POLICIES

A).VIGIL MECGHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a
“Vigil Mechanism” incorporating Whistle Blower Policy in terms of the Listing Agreement for employees
and directors of the Company, for expressing the genuine concerns of unethical behavior, frauds or
violation of the codes of conduct by way of direct access to the Chairman/Chairman of the Audit
Committee exceptional cases. The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against victimization
of employees and Directors who express their concerns.

B). REMUNERATION POLICY

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company has formulated the Nomination &
Remuneration policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration includes the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters as provided under Section
178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is annexed thereto and form
part of this Report as Annexure ‘E’.

C). RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Stakeholder Relationship and Risk Management Committee has formulated Risk Management Policy
of the Company which has been subsequently approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The
aim of risk management policy is to maximize opportunities in all activities and to minimize adversity.

The policy includes identifying types of risks and its assessment, risk handling and monitoring and
reporting, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

D). RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION POLICY

Related Party Transaction Policy, as formulated by the Company defines the materiality of related party
transactions and lays down the procedures of dealing with Related Party Transactions that may have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Transactions entered with related parties as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 2017-18 were mainly in the Ordinary
Course of business and on an arm’s length basis. Prior approval of the Audit and Risk Management



Committee is obtained by the Company before entering into any Related Party Transaction as per the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

27. SHARES

A). BUY BACK OF SECURITIES

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

B). SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

C). BONUS SHARES

No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

D).EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme.

28.HUMAN RESOURCES /INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

The Company continues to lay emphasis on building and sustaining an excellent organization climate
based on human performance. Performance management is the key word for the company. During the year
the Company employed around106 employees.

Pursuit of proactive policies for industrial relations has resulted in a peaceful and harmonious situation on
the shop floors of the various plants.

29. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES:

The disclosures in respect of managerial remuneration as required under section 197(12) read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed
hereto and form part of this report as Annexure ‘F’

None of the employee of the Company receives salary of Rs. 60 Lacs per annum or Rs. 5 Lacs per month
or more during the Financial Year 2017-2018 as per Rule 5(2) and 5(3) Companies (Appointment &

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

In terms of section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not have any Holding or
Subsidiary Company.

30. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE

Your company is listed on Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India (formerly known as MCX Stock
Exchange Ltd.) thereby having its Shares Listed on Recognized Stock Exchange with nation vide
terminals.



31. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Regulation 27 of listing agreement which outlines the corporate governance report is not applicable to our
company, as our company’s paid up capital is less than 10 crores and net worth is less than 25 crores for
F.Y 2017-18.

32. STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of section 164 of the
Companies Act 2013. The Directors have made the requisite disclosures, as required under the Companies
Act 2013.

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors places on record its sincere appreciation for the dedicated services rendered by the
employees of the Company at all levels and the constructive co-operation extended by them. Your
Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the assistance and support by all
Government Authorities, Auditors, financial institutions, banks, suppliers, other business associates and
last but not the least the Shareholders.

For And on Behalf of the Board
For Asian Lakto Industries Limited
Place: Ludhiana
Date: 29.05.2018

Sd/-

(Gopal Poddar)

Managing Director

(DIN: - 01859022)

Add: 509-B, Aggar Nagar,
Ludhiana 141001, PB (IN).



ANNEXURE A- EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

(Referred to Paragraph 17 under “Annual Return” section of our Report of even date)

FORM NO. MGT 9

AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2017

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management
& Administration) Rules, 2014.

C. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

L15209PB1994PLC014386

Registration Date

29/03/1994

Name of the Company

ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company Limited By Shares

Indian Non-Government Company

Address of the Registered office & contact details

VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara,
Ludhiana-141112, Punjab

Whether listed company

Yes

Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

Skyline Financial Services Private
Limited

Add: D-153 A, 1°" Floor, Okhla Industrial
Area, Phase — I, New Delhi .

STD Code: 011 Tel.: 26812682,
26812683

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. Name and Description of main products / NIC Code of the % to total
services Product/service turnover
of the
company
1
Fruit Juices 282 100




ITII. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SN Name and address of CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
the Company Subsidiary shares Section
/ Associate held
NIL

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category
of
Sharehold
ers

[As on 31-March-2017]

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

[As on 31-March-2018]

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

A.
Promoters

(1) Indian

a)
Individual/
HUF

3690800

3690800

58.68%

3690800

3690800

58.68%

b) Central
Govt

¢) State
Govt(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

e) Banks /
FI

f) Any
other

Sub Total

3690800

3690800

58.68 %

3690800

3690800

58.68 %




A) @)

(2) Foreign

a) NRI -
Individuals

b) Other -
Individuals

¢) Bodies -
Corp.

d) Any other -

Sub Total -
A) (2

TOTAL (A) -

3690800

3690800

58.68 %

3690800 | 3690800

58.68 %

B. Public Shareholding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning

of the year

[As on 31-March-2017]

No. of Shares held at the end of the

year

[As on 31-March-2018]

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physic

Total
al

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during

the year

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

o) FIIs

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)




Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

1) Indian

156300

156300

2.48%

156300

156300

2.48%

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs 1 lakh

1560300

1560300

24.80%

1560300

1560300

24.80%

ii) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh

869100

869100

13.81%

869100

869100

13.81%

¢) Others (HUF)

5000

5000

0.08

5000

5000

0.08

Non Resident Indians

8500

8500

0.14

8500

8500

0.14

Overseas
Bodies

Corporate

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies — D R

Sub-total (B)(2):-

2599200

2599200

41.32%

2599200

2599200

41.32%

Total Public (B)

2599200

2599200

41.32%

2599200

2599200

41.32%




C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Shareholders the year [As on 31-March-2017] %
[As on 31-March-2016] Change
Dema % of % of | during
¢ Physical Total Total Demat | Physical Total Total the year
Shares Shares
C. Shares held - - - - - - - - -
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Total - 6290000 6290000 | 100 % - 6290000 | 6290000 100 % 0.00 %
(A+B+C)
PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP:
Total Paid Up Capital Rs.6,29,00,000
Calls in Arrears (Less) Rs. 48,67,000
Total Paid Capital Rs. 5,80,33,000
C. Shareholding of Promoter
Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the
the year year
% of 7
Shares % of change
SN | Shareholder’s Name % of total | o, e d/ % of total | Shares | during
No. of Shares of 8 No. of Shares of | Pledged / the
encumbe
Shares the red to Shares the encumber | year
company company | ed to total
total
shares
shares
1 RADHE SHYAM 725300 11.53% - 725300 11.53% - -
PODDAR
2 GOPAL PODDAR 262600 4.17% - 262600 4.17% - -
3 NEERAJ PODDAR 412700 6.56% - 412700 6.56% - -
4 NIRMAL PODDAR 589800 9.38% - 589800 9.38% - -




5 MANDIRA PODDAR 327200 5.2% - 327200 5.2%
6 PRAGYA PODDAR 23500 0.37% - 23500 0.37%
7 ABHISHEK PODDAR 100000 1.59% - 100000 1.59%
RADHE SHYAM 210000 3.34% - 210000 3.34%
8 PODDAR & SONS
HUF
5 GOPAL PODDAR & 367200 5.84% - 367200 5.84%
SONS HUF
10 NEERAJ PODDAR & 672500 10.69% - 672500 10.69%
SONS HUF
TOTAL 3690800 58.68 % 3690800 58.68 %
(ii1) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
S. No. For Each of the Top 10 | Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the year
Shareholders beginning of the year
No. of shares | % of total No. of shares % of total shares of the
shares of the company
company
At the beginning of the | 50900 58.68% 3690800 58.68%
year
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in
Shareholding during the
year spe(nfyln.g the No Change
reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):
At the end of the year 3690800 58.68% 3690800 58.68 %




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRSs):

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Year during the Year
For each of the Top
b 10 shareholders Date Reaes
% of total No. of % of total
No. of shares
shares shares shares

Ramsons Financial
! Services Limited

At the beginning of 49500 0.79% 49500 0.79%

the year

h During th

Changes During the No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%

year

At the end of the year 49500 0.79% 49500 0.79%
2 | Raj Kumar

At the beginning of 66200 1.05% 66200 1.05%

the year

h During th

Changes During the No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%

year

At the end of the year 66200 1.05% 66200 1.05%
3 Rakesh Kumar

Kharbanda

At the beginning of 66200 1.05% 66200 1.05%

the year

Changes During the No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%

year

At the end of the year 66200 1.05% 66200 1.05%
4 | Chanchal Khanna

At the beginning of 66200 1.05% 66200 1.05%

the year




Changes During the

No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%

year
At the end of the year 66200 1.05% 66200 1.05%
Mukesh K Nahar
At th inning of

t the beginning o 66200 1.05% 66200 1.05%
the year
Changes During the No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%
year
At the end of the year 66200 1.05% 66200 1.05%
Aparna Capital
Services
At the beginning of 52900 0.84% 52900 0.84%
the year

h During th
}(]:eaarnges uring the No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%
At the end of the year 52900 0.84% 52900 0.84%
Pawan Kumar
Agarwal
At the beginning of 51300 0.82% 51300 0.82%
the year
Changes During the No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%
year
At the end of the year 51300 0.82% 51300 0.82%
Gurditta Mal
At the beginning of 39700 0.63% 39700 0.63%
the year
Changes During the No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%
year
At the end of the year 39700 0.63% 39700 0.63%
Shama Mehta
At the beginning of 39700 0.63% 39700 0.63%
the year
Changes During the No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%

year




At the end of the year 39700 0.63% 39700 0.63%
10 | Priya Aggarwal
At the beginning of
© DeBIiiing © 33100 0.53% 33100 0.53%
the year
Changes During the No Change 0.00% | No Change 0.00%
year
At the end of the year 33100 0.53% 33100 0.53%
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
. Cumulative
bShz'lrel'loldl?fhat the Shareholding during the
Shareholding of each eginning of the year year
SN Directors and each Key Date | Reason
b DI, % of total No. of % of total
No. of shares
shares shares shares
1 | GOPAL PODDAR
At the beginning of the year - - 262600 4.17% 262600 4.17%
Changes during the year - - No change No change | Nochange | No change
At the end of the year - - 262600 4.17% 262600 4.17%
2 | MANDIRA PODDAR
At the beginning of the year 3,27,200 5.2% 3,27,200 5.2%
Changes during the year No change No change | Nochange | No change
At the end of the year 3,27,200 5.2% 3,27,200 5.2%
3 HARINDER KUMAR
SACHDEVA
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Changes during the year No change No change | Nochange | No change
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 | ABHISHEK PODDAR
At the beginning of the year 1,00,000 1.58% 1,00,000 1.58%
Changes during the year No change No change | Nochange | No change




At the end of the year 1,00,000 1.58% 1,00,000 1.58%
5 | PRERNA
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Changes during the year No change No change | Nochange | No change
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
6 RAJESH KUMAR
SHARMA
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Changes during the year No change No change | Nochange | No change
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
7 | SHATROHAN LAL
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Changes during the year No change No change | Nochange | No change
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Particulars Secuf'ed Loans. Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
Particulars
INDEBTEDNESS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR
i) Principal Amount 199,739,847.40 3,63,53,644.98 - 236,093,492.38
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (I +ii+iii) 199,739,847.40 3,63,53,644.98 - 236,093,492.38
CHANGE IN
INDEBTEDNESS DURING
THE FINANCIAL YEAR




Addition

Loan Taken

Interest On Loan

Reduction

Loan Repaid 35,179,022.96 - 35,179,022.96

Net Change 35,179,022.96 - 35,179,022.96
INDEBTEDNESS AT THE

END OF THE FINANCIAL

YEAR

1) Principal Amount

164,560,824.44

36,353,644.98

200,914,469.42

ii) Interest due but not paid

ii1) Interest accrued but not

due

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

C. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

SI. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total
Amount

Sh. Gopal Poddar

Sh. Abhishek Poddar

Gross salary

C. Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act,

1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

© Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act,
1961

2,760,000

7,60,000

3,520,000

Stock Option




3. Sweat Equity

4. Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5. Others, please specify

6. Total (A)

2,760,000

7,60,000

3,520,000

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:

SI. No. | Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

- Fee for attending board committee
meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

- Fee for attending board committee
meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD /Manager /WTD

SI. Particulars of Remuneration
No.

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary
(Ms. Prerna)

CFO
(Ravinder
Katoch)

CFO
(Abhishek
Poddar)

Total

1. Gross salary N/A

C. Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s

1,21,000

2,59,000

280,000

6,60,000




17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

© Profits in lieu of salary under
section
17(3) Income-tax

Act, 1961
Stock Option N/A N/A N/A -
Sweat Equity N/A N/A N/A -
Commission N/A N/A N/A -
- as % of profit
- Others, specify...
Others, please specify
Total - 1,21,000 2,59,000 2,80,000 6,60,000
PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of the | Brief Details of Penalty/ | Authority[RD Appeal made. If
companies description Punishment/ /NCLT/Court] any(give details)
Act Compounding fees
imposed
A. Company
Penalty Nil
Punishment Nil
Compounding | Nil
B. Directors
Penalty Nil
Punishment Nil
Compounding | Nil
C. Other Officers In Default
Penalty Nil
Punishment Nil
Compounding | Nil
By Order of the Board

Place: Ludhiana

Date:

29.05.2018

For Asian Lakto Industries Limited

Sd/-

(Gopal Poddar)

Managing Director

(DIN: - 01859022)

Add: 509-B, Aggar Nagar,
Ludhiana 141001, PB (IN).







ANNEXURE’B’
FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. Name (s) of the related party N.A.
Nature of Relationship N.A.
2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.
3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction N.A.
4, Amount (In Lakhs) N.A.
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or N.A.
transaction including the value, if any
6. Date of approval by the Board N.A.

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party Asianlak Health Foods Limited
Nature of Relationship Sister Concern
2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchasing
3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction | On going
4. Amount Open Ended Contract
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or N.A.
transaction including the value, if any
6. Date of approval by the Board 20.05.2017
SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. Name (s) of the related party Sri Varadharaja Fruits Products

Private Limited

Nature of Relationship Sister Concern

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchase




3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction On going
4. Amount Open Ended Contract
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
6. Date of approval by the Board 20.05.2017
SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. Name (s) of the related party Nandan traders
Nature of Relationship Sister Concern
2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Sale
3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction On going
4, Amount Open Ended Contract
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
6. Date of approval by the Board 20.05.2017
SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party Revanta Marketing Services private
Limited
Nature of Relationship Sister Concern
2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Sale
3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction On going
4. Amount Open Ended Contract
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
6. Date of approval by the Board 20.05.2017
SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party Asianlak Health Foods Limited
Nature of Relationship Sister Concern
2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Sale
3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction On going
4, Amount Open Ended Contract
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
6. Date of approval by the Board 20.05.2017




SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. Name (s) of the related party Suksha Marketing Private Limited
Nature of Relationship Sister Concern
2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Sale
3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction On going
4. Amount Open Ended Contract
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any
6. Date of approval by the Board 20.05.2017
By Order of the Board
For Asian Lakto Industries Limited
Place: Ludhiana
Date: 29.05.2018

Sd/-

(Gopal Poddar)

Managing Director

(DIN: - 01859022)

Add: 509-B, Aggar Nagar,
Ludhiana 141001, PB (IN).



ANNEXURE ’C’

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014]

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;
Asian Lakto Industries Limited continued to emphasize on the conservation and optimal ~ Utilization of
energy in manufacturing unit of the Company. The energy conservation measures implemented during FY
2015 are listed below:

e Maintenance of the machines as per schedule.

e Lights in the Factory area are switched off whenever not required.

e Energy audit is conducted and recommendations are implemented.

2. Additional Investments & Proposals, if any, being implemented for Reduction of Consumption
of Energy:
The company continued its efforts towards effective utilization of energy for reduction in power
consumption. The Company is constantly exploring the use of alternate sources of energy that are
commensurate with the scale of present operations and the type of products being manufactured.

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments;
During the year under review, there was no capital investment on Energy Conservation Equipments.

Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy:

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16
POWER CONSUMPTION

Units Purchased (KWH) 3009885 3688677.58 3705651.5
Amount (Rs.) 2,48,01,457 2,99,52,062 2,96,45,212
Average Rate Per Unit (Rs.) 8.24 8.12 8.00

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:
e Imparting training to personnel in various manufacturing techniques by experts.
(2) Benefits derived like Product Improvement, Cost Reduction, Product Development or

Import Substitution as a result of above efforts:

¢ Increase productivity.
e Power saving.
e  Manpower cost reduced.



¢ Raw materials cost reduction.

¢ Production wastage reduced.

(3) Information regarding technology imported during the last 3 years
e The Details of Technology Imported - NIL

e The Year of Import - Not Applicable

¢ Whether Technology Has been Fully Absorbed - Not Applicable

e [If Not Fully Absorbed, Areas Where Absorption - Not Applicable

has not taken place and the reasons thereof.

(4)Expenditure on Research and Development

During the year under review the company did not incurred any expenses on Research andDevelopment.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review the company did not enter into any Foreign exchange transaction.

By Order of the Board

For Asian Lakto Industries Limited
Place: Ludhiana
Date: 29.05.2018

Sd/-

(Gopal Poddar)

Managing Director

(DIN: - 01859022)

Add: 509-B, Aggar Nagar,
Ludhiana 141001, PB (IN).



FORM NO MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018.

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Asian Lakto Industries Limited

VPO Jandial, Near Kohara, Phase VI,
LUDHIANA-141112

Punjab (India).

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices made by Asian Lakto Industries Limited (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit for year ended 31.03.2018 was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2018 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2018 according to the provisions of:

1) the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder:

i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder

1v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings — Not applicable during the audit period.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)

a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;



¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 and amendments from time to time;-

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; — Not applicable during the audit period.

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; — Not applicable during the audit period.

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;.

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; —
Not applicable during the audit period.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; — Not
applicable during the audit period.

(i) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulation”)

(vi) Other Applicable laws.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company & its Officers for system and
mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts as Environmental
Laws & Labour Laws.

We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following:-

A) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s).

B) The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. to the extent mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Adequate notice given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda not sent at least seven days in advance.

Adequate notice not given to all the members/shareholders to schedule the General Meetings,
Agenda and detailed notes on agenda not sent at least twenty one days in advance.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views (If any) are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.



We further report that there are minimal adequate systems and processes in the company,
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 29.05.2018 Signature:
Sd/-
Ashwani Khanna
FCS No. 3254
CP No. 2220

/

¢ Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.



LIST OF LABOUR LAWS AND ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS WHICH HAVE BEEN
VERIFIED DURING AUDIT PERIOD

«» List of Labour Laws

Factories Act, 1948

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1972

The Apprentices Act, 1961

Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

«» List of Environmental Laws

» Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

» Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
» Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981



Annexure: -A

29.05.2018

The Members,

Asian Lakto Industries Limited

VPO Jandial, Near Kohara, Phase VI,
LUDHIANA-141112

Punjab (India).

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc and we have relied on such representation for giving our report.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test
basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 29.05.2018 Signature: Sd/-
(Ashwani Kumar Khanna)

FCS No. 3254
CP No. 2220



ANNEXURE ‘E’

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

1. PREFACE:

Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meeting of the Board and its powers) Rules, 2014,the Nomination and Remuneration committee
of the Board of the Company has formulated a policy to decide the criteria for the appointment and
for the remuneration to the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.The Policy
also aims to attract, motivate and retain manpower in a competitive and global markets scenario
which is formulated by the Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on 30.06.2015

Produced here below is the “Nomination & Remuneration Policy” of the Company in compliance
with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the object as mentioned herein.

2. ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE:

a) To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to Board their appointment
and removal.

b) To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director.

¢) To recommend to the Board remuneration policy related to remuneration of Directors (Whole
Time Directors, Executive Directors etc), Key Managerial Personnel and other employees while
ensuring the following:-

¢ That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the company successfully.

e That relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks.

e That remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate of the working of the company and its goals.

-To formulate criteria for evaluation of Directors and the Board.
-To devise a policy on Board diversity.
3. MEMBERSHIP:
a). The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being
Independent.
b) Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.

¢) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.
d) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.



4. CHAIRMAN:

a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.

b) Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a
Chairman of the Committee.

c) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose
one amongst them to act as Chairman.

d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual
General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

S. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS:

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

6. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS:

C) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

D) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the
meetings of the Committee.

7. SECRETARY:

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee.

8. VOTING:

a) Decisions of the Committee shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present and voting
and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee.

b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

9. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING:

The minutes of all the proceedings of all meetings must be signed by the Chairman of the Committee
at the subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent Board
meetings.

10. EFFECTIVE DATE &AMENDMENTS:

This policy will be effective from 30.06.2015 and may be amended subject to the approval of Board of
Directors.



Place:

Date:

Ludhiana
29.05.2018

By Order of the Board
For Asian Lakto Industries Limited

Sd/-

(Gopal Poddar)

Managing Director

(DIN: - 01859022)

Add: 509-B, Aggar Nagar,
Ludhiana 141001, PB (IN).



ANNEXURE ‘F’

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT

AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary during the Financial Year 2017-18, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 and the comparison of
remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are as

under:
Sr. Name of Remuneration of | % Increase | Ratio of Comparison of the
Director/ Director / KMP in Remuneration of Remuneration of the
No. KMP and for the Financial | Remunerati | each Director / to KMP against the
Designation | Year 2017-18 on in the | median performance of the
Financial remuneration of Company
Year 2017- | employees
18
1. | Gopal Poddar,
Executive 2,760,000 228 % 24:1
Director
2. ?(l:(}ilézlrlek Profit before interest,
; 760,000 400% 27:1 depreciation and tax
Executive
Director decreased . by 11.72%
and profit after tax
3. | Harinder decreased by 29.19% in
Kumar financial year 2017-18.
Sachdeva, NIL NIL NIL
Non-
Executive
Director
4. | Mandira, Non-
]‘E;z;l;trllve - - - Not Applicable
Director
5. | Rajesh Kumar
Sharma, Non-
Executive - - - Not Applicable
Independent
Director
6. | ShatrohanLal,
Non- - - - Not Applicable

Executive




Independent

Director
8. | Prerna,
Company 1,21,000 NIL 1.14:1
Secretary Profit before interest,
depreciation and tax
9. | Ravinder decreased by 11.72%
Singh Katoch, 259,000 NIL 2.64:1 and profit after tax
CFO decreased by 29.19% in
: financial year 2017-18.
10" | Abhishek 280,000 100% 26:1

Poddar, CFO

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 29.05.2018

By Order of the Board

For Asian Lakto Industries Limited

Sd/-
(Gopal Poddar)
Managing Director
(DIN: - 01859022)

Add: 509-B, Aggar Nagar,
Ludhiana 141001, PB (IN).




R.K. DEEPAK & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Ph. 91 9915500802 : ' - ' FLAT NO.4, FIRST FLOOR;

Email id: khuranaca@gmail.com o ' ' ' KHURANA COMPLEX,
S KOCHAR MARKET CHOWK,
LUDHIANA-141001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

We bave audited the accornpanying financial statements.of ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED, (*“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, & the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of The Companies

“Act, 2013(*the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
‘of the financial position & financial performance and of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frands and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
_implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring their’
“accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
ﬁnanmal statements that give a true and fair view and are free from rnaterral misstatement, whether due to fraud
OF €ITOf.

\ AUDITOR?S RESPONSIBILITY:
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

‘_We have taken into account the prov1s1ons of the Act the accounting and audltmg standards and matters which
are required to be mcluded in the audit report under prov1s1ons of the Act and Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Aud1t1ng specified under’ Sect1on 143(10) of the |
Act. Those Standards require that wecomply wrth ethical requlrements and plan and perforrn the audit to obtain




R K. DEEPAK & CO

- o | CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Ph. 91 99155 00802 o S : FLAT NO.4, FIRST FLOOR,
Email id: khuranaca@gmail.com ‘ o -_ ' KHURANA COMPLEX,

o | KOCHAR MARKET CHOWK,

LUDHIANA-141001

An audit involves performmg procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 1 {he assessment of the
risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
* assessments, the auditor considers mternal financial control relevant to the Company s preparation of the
financial statements that give true and a fair view in order to de51gn audit procedures that are approprrate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has ‘in place an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. -An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accourting - policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made- by Company s D1reetors as well as evaluatmg the overall
" presentation of the ﬁnaneral statements : -

- We believe. that the audlt ev1dence we have obtamed 18 sufﬁcrent and approprlate to provrde a bas1s for our.
audit opmlon on the ﬁnanc1a1 statements. : o

OPINION :

In our opinion and to the best of our mformatron and accordmg to the explanatrons glven to us, the aforesald |

financial statements give the information required by the Act i in the manner so required and give a true and fair

~ view in conformity with the accounting' principles generally -accepted in India, of the state of affairs. of the
Company as at Mareh 31,201 8 and its profit and it’s for the year ended on that date » -

Report on Other Legal and Reg l'atorv Requlrements'

1. As requ1red by the Compames {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2018(“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143). of the Act, we give in the “Annexure -
A”a statement on matters speelﬁed in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent apphcable '

2. As req.tiir'ed 'by'sec't'io'n' 143(3)' of the .Act, we renort. that::"_' |

' ;a) We have sought and obtamed all the mformatron and explanatlons Whlch to the best of our’ knowledge :
and behef were necessary for the purpose of our. audlt = -

b) Inour opmron proper books of account as requrred by law have been kept by the Company so far as. 1t_
' appears from our examination: of those books; T

. dealt with by this Report are in agreement-'
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“d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting; Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. '

). Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018 and taken on
. record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is_disqﬁaliﬁed as on 31 March 2018, from 'being
~ appoinied as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,and '

f): With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial fgporting of the Company .
: and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separale Report in “Annexure — B”.

~ g) With respect to the other maters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
| the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us: ' o ' o | '

(@ The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
-(it) . The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
. there were any material foreseeable losses. ‘ . S L
- (iil) There were 10 amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor -Education and
. Protection Fund by the Company. ' o ' :

 FOR R.K. DEEPAK & CO.

TERED ACCOUNTANTS
o
 DATE:29.052018 . 0 &1V KHURANA), PARTNER

. PLACE:LUDHIANA ~ ~ S - FRN.:003145N

e g 3
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED R

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Répdrt on Other Legal- & Regulatory Requirem‘ent’l of our.
report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the'year ended March 31, 2018: '

1.

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including Quantitaﬁve details
and situation of fixed assets. : . S .

b) The fixed assets of the company are physically verified by the Management in a phased manner, -
designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a
portion of the fixed asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

- a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventofy at reasonable intervals. - -

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in .
relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business. ' - '

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the inventory records, the Company has maintained proper records of its inventories.
The discrepancies noticed on physical verification, as compared to the book records, were not material
and have been properly dealt with in the books of account. o - - ‘

" 3. Based on the audit procedures applied by us and according to the information and explanations given {0
us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the company has not granted any loans, secured or
~ unsecured to companies, firms Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register-
. maintained under section 189 of the act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of the -
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. - .

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations’ given to us; the company has not’
granted any loans to Directors etc. and not made any inter-corporate loans and investments covered

_ under the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of-
clause 4 of the Order are not applicable to the Company and J commented upon. .

g
{74

e Y
i
| —
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The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year under the provisions of -
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the
deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. - :

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

- the books of account, the company, has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income ‘Tax, Sales Tax, Service.
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed statutory dues, as at March
31, 2018, which were in arrears for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. ' ' -

' b)According to the information and explanation give to us and records of the Company examined
by us that there are no dues of Sales Tax or Service Tax or Duty of Customs or Duty of Excise or
- Value Added Tax which have not been deposited on -account of any dispute with the relevant -
-authorities. ‘ : ' o

In our opinion and 'according to the information and explahatio'ns -given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank or Government. '

o a)' Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and éxplanations given by the

~ management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public’
- offer (including debt instruments) during the financial vear.

Based upon the " audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

- management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees

has been noticed or reported during the year. .

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explénations given by the
management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordarice with. the requisite
approvals ma_ndeited by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act;

In our lopinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Com’pany. Therefore, the provisions of clausé 3 (xii) of the - |

- Order are not applicable to the Company.

gty
]
Bewpeed®
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12, In ouro pinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of

Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards. ' . : : : o

13.. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

14. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and “explanations given by the

~ management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company and hence not commentedupon. ' : ' ‘

15. In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45- 1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon, o

FOR R.K. DEEPAK & CO.
RTERED ACCOUNTANTS

KHURANA), PARTNER
~ FRN.:003145N

- DATE :29.05.2018
PLACE: LUDHIANA
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Jieﬁo_rt- on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of SuE-sectiOn 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
. det, 2013 (“the der”) | e

“-'We have audited the internal financial -controls over financial reporting of ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES‘
- LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the tinancial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date. - - ‘

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:.

“The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
- Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICATL’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
- policiés, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, ag required
under the Companies Act, 2013. : ' ' L o

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY:

- Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal -

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal ﬁna.ncial_' =
-controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of .internal financial
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* controls over financial reporting fint:lude_d..obtaining an undersiandingﬁ of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists; and testing and evaluating the design and

. operating cffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the

auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud'orerror. = - | | R ‘ B

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained: is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our .
_ audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting, . - -

~ MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

- A company's int'ernal_.ﬁnancilal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external .
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records

-that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the. assets of the

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation.of -
- financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting ‘principles, and .that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with -authorisations of management and -
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of -
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have.a material effect on the -
financial statements. R IR : T

. INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF 'INTERNAL FINANCIAL _CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL

. REPORTING: R A s .
Because of the inherent limitations. of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including- the

~ possibility of collision or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or - .

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over . -

financial reporting to future periods ‘are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial

' reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the =

policies or procedures may deteriorate, - - -

_ OPINION: -
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FOR R.K. DEEPAK & CO.
RTERED ACCOUNTANTS

DATE :29.05.2018

PLACE: LUDHIANA F.RN. : 003145N




ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

. BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2018

{Rs in.Lacs)

NOTE AS AT AS AT AS AT
31.03.2018 31.08.2017 01.04.2016
| |ASSETS -
{1} |Non Current Assets - ) )
. (@) Property, Piant and Equipment 3 52,23%,767.43 56,527,453,04 54.903,679.00 .
{b) Capital Work in Progress 0.00 0.00 0.00
(c} Intangible Assets ' 0.00 0,00 "0.00]
|(d) Financial Assets _ . s
(i) Investments .0,00 0.00 " 0.00
(i) Loans - D00} 0.00 0.00
{jii) Other Financial Assets 4 3,105,590,00 3,105,590.00 8,105,580.00
(e} Deffered Tax Assets (Net) 0.00 0.00 0.00
(fy Other Non Current Assets 000 . D.oo . 0.00]-
B 55,337,357.43 59,633,043.04 58,009,269.00
. (2) |Current Assets . : :
(@} Inventories 5 163,319,673.00 175,317,8580.00 146,119,702.20
(b) Financial Assets : . .
{i} Investments o.0o| 0.00 0.00
(i) Trade Receivable 6 108,508,193.78 116,725,612.01 768,964,481.37
(i) Cash and Cash equivalents 7 2,127,622.39 2,059,321.82 3,460,507.24
(iv) Other Bank Balances 0.00 0.00 0.00
(v} Other Financial Assets 0.00 0.00 © 0.00
(¢) Current Tax Assets (Nat) 8 0.00 0.00 . 000
(d} Non Curreni Assefs Held For Sale 0,00 : 0.00 " 0.00
{e) Other Current Assets ) 9 1,168,844,12 1,%101,084.34 1,097.95?0.00
275,124,433.28 295,203,917.17 227,642,650.81
TOTAL' 330,461,790.71 354,836,960.20 285,651,949.81
I -{EQuITY & LIABILITIES
(1} |Equity . .
* (&) Equity Share Capital 10 58,033,000.00 58,033,000.00] - 58,033,000.00
{b) Other Equity 11 §50,226,065.56 39,891,124.621. 25,294,398.24
108,259,065.56 97,924,124.62 83,327,398.24
(2) |Liabilities - ' -
Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities : ) )
{i) Borrowings ) 12 - 40,876,838.47 47,024,217.48} 44,638,533.19
(i) Trade Payables : - - -
{b) Provisions 13 0.00 0.00 0.00
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 0.00 0.00 0.00
(c} Other Non Current Liabilities - - ] . .
. ) ’ 40,876,838.47] 47,024,217.48 44,638,533.19
" 'Current Liabilities ' : ' o
(@) Financial Liabilities . _
(i} Borrowings 15 180,037,630.95 189,069,274.90{ . 132,291,114.70
(i) Trade- Payables 16 4,427,764.21 3,645,987.00¢ 10,\912,721.36'
~ {iil) Other Financial Liabilities 7 11,318,048.12 12,075,337.52| 6,031,833.78
(b) Provisions . C o - - o
{c) Other Gurrent Liabllities 18 5,542,443.40 5,198,018.67 8,450,348.54] -
: : 181,325,886.69| - - 209,888,613.09 157,686,018.38)
TOTAL ) 353;6-1,-790.71 354,836,960.18 285,651,949.81
Significant Accounting Policies - ) R o ‘ S
Notes forming part of Accounts 26

Partner

SANJIV KHURANA !

PLACE:
DATE :

As per our report of even date aittached

FOR RK. DEEPAK & CO

Ludhiana
28th May,2018

For and on behaif of Board of frectors

i

"GOPAL PODDAR
DIRECTOR -
DIN - 01850022

Matiidurt Yodtelon

ABHISHEK PODDAR

co ol
“H.K SACHDEVA
DIRECTOR

IN- 02361580

PRERNA SUNDA

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER .

-~ COMPANY SECRETARY



~ ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

) STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°7 MARCH,2018 -

{Rs in lacs) {Rs in Iaés)
NOTH FOR THE YEAR ENBED FQR THE YEAR ENDED ) FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31.03.2018 ' 31.03.2017 ‘ 31.03.2016
1 |INCOME .

Revenue From Operations 19 659,738,348.00( . 834,396,121.00 767,254,268,00

Other Income 20 1.(_)98,788.'00 866,871.00 ~ 279,575.00

TOTAL REVENUE (1 + 1Y) - 660,837,136.00 835,262,992.01 767,533,843.01

. Il |EXPENSES ‘

Cost of Materials Consumed 21 542,635,728,00 704,475,908,.26 660,408,673.80

Change in lnventories of Finished Goods Work-

in-Progress, Stock-in-Trade 22 «2,604,826.00 -2,325,905.00 -5,388,035.00

Excise Duty on sale of goods . '3,379,488.00 - 5,495,000.00 £,686,000.00

Employee Benefils Expenses - 23 29,081,325.00 21,862,308.00 11,874,070.59

Finance Costs - 24 “17,801,085.44 16,763,340.56 15,643,500.62

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 4,711,837.00 4,612,196.98 2,601,383.02

Other Expenses 25 51,058,286,22 ~ 83,527,676.51 57,491,593.66
ITOTAL EXPENSES (V) 646,072,934.66 814,410,525.32 748,318,797.10

i1l [Prefit{loss) before exceptional items and tax ) . '
from continuing operations {lll-IV) 14,764,201.34 20,852,466,69 19,215,045.01f

Expactionat ftems - - -

W {Profitf (loss) before tax from continuing
operations (V-Vi) . 14,764,201.34 20,852,466.69 19,215,045.91
V |TAX EXPENSE ; )
Current Tax 44,29 260,40 6,255,739.86 5764,513.77
Earlier Year - . .
: } 4,429,260.40 6,255,739.88 5,764,513.77 :
Deferred Tax i 4,426 260.40 6,255,739.88 5764 513.78
Vi {Profit/ (Loss}) far the Year from cordinuing * :
operations (VIi-VIH) 10,334,940.94 14,596,726.82 13,450,532.14
VIl |other Comprehensive Income.
{A) Items that will be reclassifi ed to profit or foss
Other (specify nature)
. Hncome tax effect

(B} items that will not be reclassmed to profit or

loss

Re-meas'urement gains '(Iosses) on defined

benefit plans

Income tax effect
|Other Comprehensive Income for the year net

of Tax -

Total Comprehenswe Incorne for the Year

{IX+X)

Vill (Compnsung Profit/ {Loss) and Other 10,334,940.94 14,596,726.82 13,450,532.14
X [Earmings per equily share of '10 each ’ :

(1) Basic 0.02 0.02 0.02.
(2} Diluted 0.02 0.02 0.02
|Bignificant Accounting Policies

Notes. forming part of Accounts 26

PLAGE: Ludhiana
DATE :

AS per our report of even date attached
FOR R.K. DEEPAK & CO

29th May,2018

}'he accnmpanying notes are integrél part of the financial statements,

For and on behalf of Beard of Directors]

AL

GOPAL PORDAR

DIRECTOR

DIN - 01859022
o .

W pm_

ABHISHEK PODDAR

CHIEF FINANGCIAL OFFICER

H.K SACHDEVA ™

DiN- 02381580

PRERNA SUNDA
COMPANY SECRETARY




ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMIITED',
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%7

MARCH, 2018

EQUITY

(A) Equity Share Capllal

{Rs in Lacs)

‘Particular

Nos.

' Amount

‘Balance As At 01.04.2016

5,603,300.00

-4,867.,000.00

Equity share capital issued during the year

‘Balance As At 31.03,2017

5,803,300.00

4,867,000.00

Equity share capital/Bonus shares.igsu

ed during the year

0.00]

0.00

| Balance As At 31.02.2013

5,803,300.00]

4,867,000.00

(B) Other Equity

Reserves and surplus

Capital reserves

General reserve

Retained. Earning

Totai

As At 01.04.2016

3,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

17,294,398.24

25,294,398.25

Profit/{Loss) for the Year

Other comprehensive for the year net of
income tax :

. Dlwdend Including dividend distribution tax
As At 31.03.2017 .

3,000,000.00 |

5,000,000.00

31,891,124.62

39,891,124.62

Profit/(t oss) for the pariod

Other compiehensive for the year net of
income tax

Addition during the y'ear

Deletion during the year

' As At 31.03.2018

3,000,000.00

5,000,000.00 |-

42,226,065.56

50,226,065.56

Significant Accounting Policies )
{Notes forming part of Accounts

FORR.K. bEEPAK &CO
‘[Chartered Accountants )
(Fipm Registration No.:314

PLACE: Ludhiana ™
DATE : 28th May,2018

26

The accompanying notes are integrat part of the financial statements.

(X0
GOPAL PODDAR_

DIRECTOR
DIN-- 01859022

ABHISHEK PODDAR

_ CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

For and on behalf of Board)'of Directors

H.K, SACHDEVA
. DIRECTOR

" DIN- 02381580
‘ﬁ@fr\q

“PRERNA SUNDA
_ COMPANY SECRETARY
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: ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH,2018

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 24 “__MARCH, -lal:d
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

{Rsin Lacs) {Rs imLacs)
Year Ended " Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017] N .03.201;'
{A) [Cash flows from operating activities . . . .
Profit for the year . 14,764,201 .34 20,852.466,89 19,215,045.91
Adjusiments for: ’
Drepreciation . 4,711,837.00 o 4,612,196,93 2,601,393.02
(Profit)/Loss on gale of Fixed Asset . . :
Interest and finance charges ' 17,801,098.44 18,765,340.585 15,843,800.02
Income Tax adjustment : ' . . ' - o . '
Non cash Lease Rental Expenses ' :
Operating profit before working capital changes . ) 37,277,136.78 ’ 42,228,004,23 37,460,238.9ﬂ
Adjustrnents for : ’ j ] B . ) -
101,646.00 {15,235.00) 86,548.00
. . : {200,000.00)
(Increase) / decrease in inventories ’ 11,998,226.00 (29,198,196.80)) - - {8,540,913.20)
(Increase) / decrease in frade receivables - ) 8,217 41822 {39,761,130.63} {742,852,37)
{Increase) / decrease In other financlal assats {excluding advance tax) . (29.031,643,05)] . 56,778,160.20 (493,933,01}
(InGrease) / decrease.in other cusrent assets . (169,505.78) ’ " 1214086 - {440,511,00)
Increase / (decrease) in frade payables . . ’ 881777211 " {7,368,734.36) : 888583238
Increase f {decrease) in other current fiabifities . (757,289.40) 6,043,503.74 233,185.74
Increase / (decrease} in otner financlal liabilities and provision {excluding provision for tax) . 344 424.73 (3,252,320.87) 4,646,724.01
Cash generated from cperations - ) ) 28,862,189.81 25,468,182.17 40,894,09%]
“{Income tax refund/ (paidy ' (4,429.280.40)] . : (&255,?39.88) 5.764,513.77
Net Cash flow generated from operating activities 24,432,929.41 19,212,442,29 35,129,585.71 |
(B) " |Cash flow from invésting activities . : .
Additions to PPE and intangible assets (including movemert in CWIP) ' (416,151,40) {6,235,971.00) (31,574,493.00)
Procesds from sale/ disposal of property, plant and equipment ’ -
Interest received : . :
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities {416,151.40) (6,235,971.00) {31,574,493.00}]
(C} |Cash flow from financing activities . :
(Repaymenty/Proceeds from long term borrowings ) (6,147,379.00) 2,385,684.28 6,109,392.21
(Repaymants of) / Proceeds from short term borrowings (net} ) . .
Intarest and finance charges paid. : {17,801,098.44) {16.763,340.56) {15,643,800.62
" [Net cash flows {used in)f generated from financing activities (23,948,477.44)]. (14,377,856.28) {7.534,408.41)f
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) ’ © 68,300.57 : (1,401,184.99) (3,979,315.70)
Cash and cash equivalents- opening balance - 2,059,321.82 - 3,460,506 .65 . -
Cash and cash equivalents- closing batance : 2,127,622.39 2,059,321,82 (3,979,315.70)
Notes to cash flow statement: . : : )
Cash and cash equivalents include : ) ) ] 7.439,822.35
Cash on hand
Cash credit
Balances with hanks: ’ : S :
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year : _ 2,127,622.38 2,059,321.82 3,460,508.65
As-per aur raport of even date attachied : . : : ' ’ T
|FOR ASHWANI & ASSOCIATES N :
g ’ For and on behalf of Board of Directo .
: \%TAQ' M‘c
G L PODDAR : o H.K. SACHDEVA
DIRECTOR ; o I DIRECTOR .
DIN-- 01859022 ) - DIN- 02381580
AMolrirbele Puciolng, - r-g(u‘“a
ABHISHEK PODDAR : C PRERNA SUNDA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER - : COMPANY SECRETARY
PLACE: Ludhiana : n '
DATE : 26th May,2018




ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

I : : (Rs in Lacs)
AS AT AS AT AS AT _
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
NOTE - 4 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS '
. Security Deposits 3‘105,5'90.00 3_.105,590.00 3,105,590.00
: 3,1_05,'590.00 _3,105,590.00 3,105,590.00
NOTE - § INVENTORIES )
Raw Material 106;926,515.00| ' 119,526,412.00 92,654,120.20
Finished Goods 36,426,501.00 34,050,434.00 29,047,615.00] -
Work in Process 17.,254,125.00 17,025,366.00 18,802,280.00
. Consumable store . 2,712,532.00 4,715,687.00 4,715,687.00
- __163,319,673.00 175,317,899.00 146,119,702.20
. NOTE - 6 TRADE RECEIVABLE
Unsecured )
Trade receivable from Related parties - Considered Good 0.00 0.00 0.00
Trade receivable - Considered Good 108,508,193.78 116,725,612.00 76,064,481.37] .
Trade receivable - Considered doubtful . . - . i
108,508,193.78| 116,725,612.01 76,964,481.37
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - . S .
_ : 108,508,193.78 116,725,612.01 76,964,481.37
NOTE - 7 CASH & BANK BALANCE
Cash and Cash Equivalents _ .
Cash in Hand 1,634,635.18 1,805,897.00 1,825,610.15
Balances with Scheduled Banks :
In Current Account 492 987 21 253,424.82 1.634,807.09
_ Cheques deposited but not cleared 0.00
Margin Money Deposit against bank guarentee
2,127,622.39 2,059,321.82 3,460,507.24
NOTE - 8 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) .
" Advance Payment of Tax - .
i . 0.00 0.00 0.00
"NOTE - 9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS : :
Other Advances .
Advances for Material & Services :
Other Advances 36,231.00 36,231.00 36,231.00
Others . i :
Prepaid expenses §11,796.12| 602,761.34 - 627,874.00
Balances with Statutery/Government Authorities - : :
Interest Recelvable 539,441.00 : 278,970.00 265,988.00
Excise 19,876.00 - 133,122.00 67,887.00
Service Tax, GST and VAT .
Loan to Employee - 61,600.00 - 50,000.00 100,000.00|
: 1,168,944.12 1,101,084.34 1,097,890.00}
- 1,168,944.12| 4,101,084.34 1,087,990.00
Nota

1) Inventories & Trade receivables are hypothecated with the bankers against working capltal limits.
. 2} Trade Receivables are usually non Interest bearing and ars an trade terms of 30 to 90 days ’
3} No Trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person
4) There are no restriction with regard to cash and cash equivalents as the end of the reporting period ad-prior period except othenmse stated

) % ' 's,c;\(‘&é'f— o




ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Nt;te 10.3 Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only Equity Share Capital as such no Preference Shares are subscrived and Pa
including distribution of dividend and repayment of capital. No part of the share of the company has

thereof.

Note 10.4 Aggregate number of shares bought back, or Issued as Tully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being recelved in cash

"1 Equity shares allotted asfully paid-up pursuant to contracts for consideration other than

cash

i =i - e L T,

g e -y
2 premium account, surplus reserve and.general reserve

D L S e S

3 Equity sharss issued under the Emplayae Stock Option Plan/ Employea Stack Purchase

Plan as part cansideration for services rendered by employees
Total : :

NOTE - 11 OTHER EQUITY
{li} Reserve & Surplus
{t} Capital Reserve
Subsidy
' Profit& Loss Accoumt

(d) General Reserve

As I.Der Last Balanca Sheet
‘{e} Retalned Earning

As Pet Last Balancé Sheet.

Less: (Excoss)iDeficlt Depraciston

Less: Provision for taxation for aariier years
Less: Bonus Share Alloted during the year
Less: Proposed Prefarence dividend

- Items of Other Comprehensive Income recog_nlsed directly in retalned éarnings
' (%) Remeasurement of Defined benefit plan ' '
{c).Current Investment at MTM
Opening Balance

Addition during the year
Delation during the year

(Rs In. Lacs)
AS AT CASAT AS AT
. 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
NOTE - 10 SHARE CAPITAL .
Autherised .
' 85,00,000 [Previcus Yaar -2017'(5,00,000) & 2018 (5,00,000)]
Equity Shares of '10{- sach ©5,000,000.00 65,000,000.00 B5,000,000.60
65,000,000,0¢ £5,000,000.00 65,000,000.00] -
-fssved, Subscribed & Pald Up L
6280000 ) )
Equity Sharas of *10/ each Fully Palg up 62,500,000.00 £2,900,000.00 62,900,000.00
*Less : ALLOTEMENT MONEY IN ARREARS 4‘.'861000.00 4,867,000.00 4,867,000.00]
TOTAL T 58,033,000.00 58,033,000.00 58;ﬁ33.000.00
_ . "% Holding % Holding % Hotding
Note - 10.1 Details of Sharcholders fiolding nipre than §% shares In the Company No. of shares in the class No. of shares inthe class No. of sharas in the class
{Equity Shares of *10 each fully paid B ) ' : !
1 RADHE SHYAM PODDAR 725,300.00 11.53% 725,200.00 11.63% 725,300.00 11.63%
2 NEERAJ PODDAR 465,460.00; - 5.56% 465,400.00 6.56% 465,400.00 6.56%
2 NIRMAL PODDAR ) §89,700.00 £.38% £86,700.00) © 9.38% 588,700.05 9.38%
4 MANDIRA PODDAR 328,700.00 - 5.24%) 329,700.00 5.24% 320,700.00 £.24%
6 GOPAL PODDAR-& SONS HUF 349,300.00 5.55% 349,300.00 . 5.558% 348,350,00 5‘5.5%
6 NEERAJ PODDAR & SONS HUF ©48,100.00 40,32% 649,100.00, 40.32% '648,100.00 10.32%
* Note - 10.2 Recanciliation of shares outstanding at the baginning and
at the end of the reporting year ) ' .
. Equity Shares ] No. of shares Amount No. of shares). Amount No. of shares Amount
qu;rity shares at the beginning of the year §,803,300.00 58,033,000.00 §,803,300.00 48,033,000.00 5,803,300.00 ' 53;033;000.00
Add: Benws shares issuad during the year . ] 0.80 . - - - -
. h 5,803,300.00 58,033,000,00 §,803,300.00 58,032,000.00 5,803,300.00 §8,033,000.00

‘or. by way of bonus shares

i up. There is no partly paid up Equity Share.lssued Capital has-equal right of all sharebolders
held by any holding company ot its ultimate holding company including subsidiaries ar associates

during the period of five years

No. of Shares

A3 at31.05.2018 As'at31.03.2017) As al01.04.2018] Asat31.032018] Acats!D32018] As at 31.03.2014
'0.00 . 5 - . .
3,000,000.00 3,000,000,00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
5,000,000,00 5,000,000.00 5000,000.00f . 5,000,000.00
A2,226,065.66] _ 31,891,124.62)  17.204,308.24) - 17,294.398:24
. 0.00
50,226,085.66 - 36,801,124.62] 25,294.398.24 26,204,396 24 0,01

%@ﬂq .



ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED MARCH A, 2018

{Rs'In Lacs)

{d} Deferred Lidbilities .Comprises of ! .

‘Accelerated-Depreciation for Tax purposes
Expenses altowable on Payment basis
- Others

As at 31,03.2018

As at 31.08.2017

e

© As at 01.04.2018

6,255,749,88

it of profit and loss

March 34,2018

000}

000

March 31,2017

0.0

ot
ASAT ASAT . ~ASAT
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 ' 01.04.2016.
NOTE - 12 LONG TERM BORROWINGS _
SECURED LOANS CU.RRENT.' ‘NON CURRENT CURRENT ~NON CURRENT . CURRENT NON _CURRE_NT
. Term Loans From Banks ' o o
.Rupeg Loans
a) Vehicle Loan : ) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -0.00 CURRENT - ong .
RELIGARE / INNOVA CAR LOAN (ICICI) 1,043,595.00 116,085.00 .-
- TATAACE LOAN (TATA) 11,42,632.00 §24,979.00 -894,314.00 C .1.421.109.'9(} -'89_'4.314.00
TATAACE LOAN (HDFC) 42,43,268.15; - 4,812,553.40 '4.454,72'6,00' 1,150,116.40} 144,877.60 |
. HDFC CAR LOAN 40,95,036.97 3,808,214.49 3,569,328.12 6,791,497.49 163186148  6,365,871: g1]-
ICICI UGL . 4,20,628,00 i . 455,476.00 42434900 - 40321300 - 879,825, oo- |
INTER CORPORATE DEPOSIT 16,343.00 . 16,343.00 b tea43.00]
Securiy & Other Loan © 36,337,301.98 36,337,301.98 36, 337 301 98
o . 9,901,506.12 40,876,838.47 “10.775,266.52 47,024,217.47 4.722.335.?8_ 44.63;3,533.19’ ;
Less! Current Maturity : i N
Foreign Qurrency Loans 0,00 . 0.00( 0.0ﬁ _
Rupee Loans :
CTHER LOAN .
‘ 0.00 0.00 p.00]
40,876,838.47 - 10.?75,265.52 47,024,217 .48 4,722,385.78 i 44,638,533.19
NOTE - 13 LONG TERM P}!O\ﬂSIONS
Provisions for Emﬁloy'ee Benefits )
Proevision fer Gratuity
0.00 0.00 ~ o.00]
" NOTE- 14 DEFERRED '!'AX LIABILITIES (NET)
@) comprises: . . _
Current lncome Tax Charge 4,429,260,40 5,764,513.77
" Adjustment of Tax r_e!ating to earlier years - 0.00
: Deferrod Taxv e o
§lff8(r_enc§§_ R 0.00 * 0.00
Profit or Loss ’ : - 4,428,260.40 5.764,513.77
{b) Other Comprehensive Income )
Re-measurament {gains)fosses on defined benefit plans
Income Tax related items recogmsed in OCl during L S
©_ the year . — 0,00; -0.00
{c) prof: r. t;lul;:lphed by ll'ldl; 's c.l;;n;stlc'tax rate: o - ) L ) 1 .
" Accounting Prafit Before Tax 14,764,201.34 - . $20,852,466.69| . 19,215,045.91
Apglicable Tax rate - - ? s
: 4,429,260.40 6,266,739.88 5,764,513.77 |
Diffsreince in Tax rate t
Incoma Tax.charged to Statement if Prof‘ it and loss at
an effective rate of 28.59% and {March 31 2017 R I
33 rs%) 4,425,260.40 5,764,513.77] .

Wrm qu-_.._



0001 0.00 n.on . - M| 0.00
Reconciliation of Defarred Tax Liablfity (Net) .

N

’ -dpenlng_BaJance ) : ’ . 0.00
" -Deferred Tax Charge Created during the year
-Deferred Tax credited during the year : ' . ' - -
-Closing Balance ‘ 0.00 000 : 0.00
0,00 . i 0,00 O

NOTE - 15 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

SECURED LOANS (WORKING CAPITAL)

From Banks .
Rupee Loans
Punfab National Bank 160,037,630.05 189,069,274.90 ) 132,291,114.70
160,037,630.95 189,069,274.90 132,291, 114.70 C.00| | 0.0
Note:
Security:

1) The Cash Credit limit availa from PN Bank It is fully securad by hypothecation of the company's entire stock of Raw Maiérials, semi finished and finished goods, consumatle stores and spares and such other
“12) The Working capital Is further secured by Equitable morigage, in a form and manner satisfaclory to bank, on the industrial property owned by company . :

Guarantee; . ) . ’
1} Cas_h Credit timit s secured by personal guarantee of Promotors.

-—%g?“g'(w\' - o ettt VW. | _.fb‘“o‘




ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 .

Additional Information: -

extent such parties have been identified on tha basis of information available with the Company. Th
March, 2018 are as under S : '

(i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year

A The-interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year

" The amount of interest dug and payable for the period of delay in making payment {

“which have baen paid but beyond the'appm’nted,day during the year) but without adding
the Interest specified under this Act

The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end of the
year S

(i
(V)

Note;

2) Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 90 days.
* 3) Trade payable are non interest bearing.

The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the " The Micro, Small and Medium E

(Rs in Lac
AS AT AS AT AS AT
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2018
NOTE - 16 TRADE PAYABLE -
Outstanding'dues to Micro & Small Enterprises ‘ - . B -
Outstanding dues to ather than Micro & Small Enterprises . A4,427.764.21 3,545,987.00 10,912,721.3
: ' 4427,764.21] °_ 3,545987.00] 10,912,721

nterprises Development Act, 2008"
e disclosures relating o Micro and

has been determined to the
Small Enterprises as at 31st

Sy

[~
NOTE - 17 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 9,901,505.12 10,775,266.52 4,722.3&5.'{8
Other Payable 1,416,543.00 ~ 1,300,071.00 1,309,448.00
, 11,318,048.92]" - -12,075,337.52 6,031,833.78
NOTE - 18 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances from Customers . .
Statutery Dues Payable |
Wages & Salary F’aya'b]e 2,266,867.00 1,054,026.00 675,172.00
E.S.I Payable’ : 220,959.00f 77,281.00 31,711.00
" Director Remunaration Payable 230,080.00 130,000.00 130?000.00
Provident Fund Payable - . 677.768.00] . 214,324.00 108,367.00[.
GST payable 1,702,080.00| - -0.00|- -
C.S.T. Payable _ - 0.00 129,576.00 162,891.00
Excise Dufy Payable On stock 0.00 202,873.79 243,622.00
Service Tax Pdyabie ) o 0.00
Punjab Labour Welfare Fund Péyabie 42,100.00 22,125.00 -13,600.00 |
VAT Payable 0.00 736,732.00 1,011,990.61f
Employee Benefits Payable ] - .
Provision For Taxation 4,429,260.60F 6,255,739.88 0,764,513.77
TDS (Advancs) . -4,026,592.00{ - -3,624,659.00 -3,078,678.00
" Income Tax Payable 402,668.40 2,631,080.88. 2.685.834.77
L 5,542,443.40 5,198,018.67 8,450,348.54
. Diff 0.00] 0.00 ' o.00]. -




ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

- NOTES FORMlNG PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
{Rs in Lacs
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR FOR THE YEAR-ENDED| FOR THE YEAR ENDE!
! | 31.08.2018 31.03.2017, 31.03.201
NOTE - 19 REVE_NUE FROM QPERATIONS ®
Sales 558,738,348.00 834,386,121 00 767,254,268.0
658,738,348.00 834,396,121.00 767,254 268.01
Nore Exc[se duly collected from customars included in sales ameunted to Rs 78,52 lacs (March 2017 Rs 365, 25) . Sale of Products net of Excise is Re 3680.18 lacs { March 2017 Rs 3314 .47
lacs)
NOTE - 20 OTHER INCOME
Rent 180,000.00 180,000.00 180,000.00
Intsrest Income 32,288.00;+ 27.871.06 63,575.0(
Misc Income 36,000.00 36,000.00 36,000.0¢
Vehicle rent 843 500.00 823,000.00
1,098,788.00 866,871.00 279,575 0

NOTE - 21 COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Raw Malerial Consumed

NQTE - 22 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GQODS, WORK-{N-PROGRESS & STOCK
Opemng Stock

Finished Goods
Others Materials { Work in Process)

Closing Stock
Finished Goods
Others Materials { Work in Process)

~IN-TRADE

542 635,728 00 704,475,908.26 B60,408,673.8¢
542,835,728.00 7044,475,908.25 660,406,673.8(
34,050,434.00 29,847,615.00 26,674,845.0C
17,028 366.00 18,802 280.00 18,887,015.0C
51,075,800.01 48,749,895.00 43,361,860,00

36.426,501.00,
17,284,125.00

34,050,424,00
17,025,386.00

29,94?,615.00
18,802,280.00

53,680,626.00 51,075,800.00 48,749,895 .00
{IncreasejDecrease -2,604,826.00 -2,325,905,09] -5,388,035.00
‘ s
i Jstinibashe Faddod, ya




NOTES FORMING PART OF TH

ASIAN LAKTO iNDUSTRIES LIMITED

E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH M, 2018

NOTES TC ACCOUNTS 0.0000 {Rs In Lac
FOR THE YEAR ENDED| FOR THE YEAR ENDED] FOR THE YEAR ENDI
' 31.03.2018 31.63.9017 31.03.20
NOTE - 23 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS'EXPENSES :
Salary, Wages & Bonus 23,561,321.00 18,687,615.00 9,545,436 |
Director Remunaration 3,520,000.00 1,560,000.00 1,260,000
ESI Contibution G58,570.00 464,396.00 312,162.(
Provident Fund 1,361,434.00 1,1560,297.00 756,473.0
29,091,325.00 - 21,862,308.00 . 11,874,070.4
NOTE - 24 FINANGE COSTs _ .
Bank charges 472,784.60 825,373.86 701 ,620.6:
‘Interest Expanses 1,596,708.84 469,603.70 )
. Other Borrowing Costs 15,731,605.00 16,468,363.00 14,942,780.01
’ 17,801,008.44 16,763,340.58 15,843,800.6;
NOTE - 25 OTHER EXPENSES : )
, Advertisament 1,093,015.00 885,373.00 418,863,1¢
AGM -Expensas 7,500.00/. 7,500.00] 5,600.00
‘Car Repair & Malntenancs 166,007.41 165,386.00 §1,504,00
-Computer Expenses 78,937.31 1,405,839.67 76,558.00
Compensation For sale 774,882,22 966,017.04 806,185.00
Carriaga, Freighd, Vehicle Diegel 6,500,032 49 6,687,551.09 Ei,'l'§39.319.00i
Diwali Expenses 20,600,001 . 25,400.00 30,600.G0
Irisurance Expenses 429,880.88 457,207.00| . 637,518.00
Legal & Professional Charges 097,085.50 1.421,516.00 468,644.00
Listing Fee -35,000.00 50.000.00 40,850.00
Machinery repair & maint 1,809,506.84 2,100,940.00 3,868,545.00
Cther Repair , Vishicle Repair 1.524,963.26 1,835.407.32 722,213.00
Rent paid - 722,000.00 £60,000,00 654,000.00
Rent, Fae, Rato & Taxes 1,408,764,00 892,082.00 819,218.00
Postage & Telegram 66,368,00 73,018.00 10,625.00
Printing & Stationery 358,651,71 328,125.33 413,891.00
AuditFeo 35,000.00 45,000.00 35,000.00
- Misc. Expenses {Power & Fuef , Store Consumed) 35,551,002.60 45,676,313.09 41 ;620'.672.56
.ITOTAL . 51,053,286.22[ 63,527,676.51, 57,491,893.66

A0

) 'ﬁdf\a



ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTE - 26’
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2018

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

L Corporate information:

Asian Lakto Industries Limited is a Limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is in the business of manufacturing of Fruit Juices, ~

2, Busis of P}egamu'on:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in India (Indian GAAP). The Compuny has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the
accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014, The financial statements have been prepared on an acerual basis and under the historical
cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of
pl'E\'IOUS year.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies

i) Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to
make judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. at the end of the year. Although these estimates are based on the management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuft in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future years,

ii) Basis of Classification of Current and Non-Current:

Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non-current based upon the requirements
of Revised Schedule U1 notified under the Companies Act 2013,

An asset has been classified as current if (a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
Company’s normal operating cycle: or (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or (¢) it is expected to be
realized within twelve months aller the reporting date: or (d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. All other assets have been
classified as non-current.

A liability has been classified as current when (a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle: or
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded: or (¢) it is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting
date; or (d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. All other liabilities have been classitied as non-current.

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents.

iii) Fixed Assef:
Fixed Assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, il any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

" -
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Fixed Asset are measured as the difference between the nel disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset dnd are |ewgm.9..d in the statement uf pmﬁt and loss when the asset is derecognized.
Intangible assets acquired separate 2 me

1|Page



ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTE - ‘26
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018

iv) Depreciation on Fixed Asset: Depreciation on Fixed Asset is provided using the Straight Line Method as per the useful
lives of the assets as estimated by the management. which are equal to the rates preseribed under Schedule [1 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

v) Inventories:

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, Cost of Inventories is determined on First in First Out (FIFO)
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business. less estimated cost necessary
to make the sale.

vi) Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and there
venue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revemue is
recognized:

vii) Income Taxes:

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date .Current income tax
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of pro fit and loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assels are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assels can be realized. In situations where the Company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred
tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be. that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

viii) Borrewing Cost: Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with
arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they oceur.

ix) Earnings per Share : Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributal
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharehc
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of &l dilutive po
equity shares. ’

1. Notes on_Accounts

|. The annual Accounts have been prepared on going concern basis.

EP
2. Tax Deducted at Source was deposite q@f)'g?r- n

2|Page




ASIAN LAKTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTE - °26°
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2018

3. There are no amounts payable to any small-scale industrial undertaking.
4. Managerial Remuneration paid/ provided is:

(Amownis in Rupees)

Particulars 2017-18 201617
Remuneration to Directors 35,20.000 15.60.000
Remuneration to Manager Nil Nil

As no commission is payable to the Director, the computation of net prafits under section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not
being given.

5. Materials consumed are of varied nature and include items of consumables, fuel etc. Therefore it is not feasible to give the
details as required under schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.

6.  Previous year figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary.

7. Note 1 10 22 forms an integral part of the Balance Sheet. Statement of Profit & Loss Account and have been authenticated as
such,

FOR R.K. DEEPAK & CO. . Q
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Q
RECTOR
(GOPAL PODDAR)

(SANJIV KHURANA W

PARTNER * Lot
DIRECTOR

(H.K. SACHDEVA)

DATE :29.05.2018
PLACE: LUDHIANA

3|Page



Form No. MGT-11

Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L15209PB1994PLC014386
Name of the company: Asian Lakto Industries Limited

Registered office: VPO JANDIALI, NEAR KOHARA LUDHIANA PUNJAB

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
I.Name: ......ccooeveinennnnn..

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: ---------------------

2.Name: .......cooeeviiinninen.

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: ---------------------

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 24™ Annual
general meeting of the company, to be held on the 30" day of September, 2018, at 11:00 A.M. at
VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara, Ludhiana-141112, Punjab and at any adjournment thereof in respect

of such resolutions as are indicated below:



Sr. | Resolution(S) Vote
No.

For Against

1. Adoption of statement of Profit & Loss, Balance Sheet, report of
Director’s and Auditor’s for the financial year 31st March, 2018

2. To Re-appoint a Director in place of Smt. Mandira Poddar (DIN:
02114374), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for
re-appointment.

3. To ratify the appointment of M/s RK Deepak & Co. (Chartered
Accountants), Statutory Auditors for Financial Year 2018-19.

4. Blanket approval for related party transactions under the provisions of
section 188 of Companies Act, 2013.

5 To Increase Remuneration of Mr. Gopal Poddar, Managing Director
From Rs. 230,000 Per Month To Rs. 3,00,000 per month w.e.f 01 April
2018.

Signed this...... day of......... 2018

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.




Route Map for the Venue of AGM



If undelivered, please mail it to

Asian Lakto Industries Limited
Registered Office: VPO Jandiali, Near Kohara,
Chandigarh Road, Ludhiana




